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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Medanta Holdings Private Limited
Repott on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Medanta Holdings Private Limited (‘the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024,
and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘TCAD) together with the ethical
tequitements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Repott to the members of Medanta Holdings Private Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Director’s Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditot’s report. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Compan} s abﬂlt}
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors cither intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Medanta Holdings Private Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, ot the override of internal control,

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

o FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Repott on Other Legal and Regulatory Requitements

11. As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid remuneration
to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act.

12. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

13. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report,
to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 13 (k) (vi) below on

reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

¢) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Medanta Holdings Private Limited on the financial
statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as
stated in paragraph 13(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 13(h)(vi)
below on repotting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

@) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position as at
31 March 2024,

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024;

i, There were no amounts which were tequited to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024;

1v. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 44A to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaties’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 44B to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaties’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024; and
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Repott to the members of Medanta Holdings Private Limited on the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

vi, Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year
commencing on 01 April 2023, have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature was not enabled
at database level for accounting software to log any direct data changes, as described in note 45 to the
financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software where such feature is
enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

o N
Mol g“&/
Madhu Sudan Malpani
Partner

Membership No.: 517440

UDIN: 24517440BKGTZ55328

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2024
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Annexute A referred to in paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Repott of even date to the membets

of Med

anta Holdings Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report

that:

O (@)

(b)

(d)

()

(@) (2)

()

(1)

(i)
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(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details
of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets and
intangible assets under development.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets under which the
assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance
with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant
details of right-of-use assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee),
disclosed in Note 6A to the financial statements, are held in the natne of the Company. For title
deeds of immovable properties in the nature of land situated at Plot A/SSH, Sector-A, Pocket-1,
Sushant Golf City, Sultanpur road, Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh with gross catrying values of Rs 753.39
million as at 31 March 2024, which have been mortgaged as security for loans or borrowings taken
by the Company, confirmations with respect to title of the Company have been directly obtained
by us from the respective lenders.

The Company has adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-
use assets) and intangible assets. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed as compared to book records.

As disclosed in Note 41D to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working capital
limit in excess of Rs. 50.00 millions, by a bank on the basis of security of current assets. Pursuant to the
terms of the sanction letter, the Company is not required to file any quarterly return or statement with
such bank.

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under sections 185 and 186 of the Act.

_Accotdifgly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexute A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Medanta Holdings Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(cont’d)

(v)

(vi)

(vit) (2)

(b)

(i)

(ix)

(x)
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In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within
the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Otrder is not applicable to the
Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section
148 of the Act in respect of the business activities of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to
in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute. '

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government ot any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way
of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries,
associates ot joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Oxrder is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.

_Aceordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexute A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Medanta Holdings Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(cont’d)

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by
our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints reccived by the Company duting the
year.

(i) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xif) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiif) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into
by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required under Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information
and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section
177 of the Act.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal
audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as tequired under the
provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period
under audit. .

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does
not have any CIC.

(xvif) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xcviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xviif) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members
of Medanta Holdings Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(cont’d)

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information in
the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has transferred unspent amounts
towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in respect of other than ongoing projects toa Fund specified
in Schedule VII to the Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards
Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining to any ongoing project as at end of the current financial year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under
this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N /N500013

Y R
Moo S92

Madhu Sudan Malpani
Partner
Membership No.: 517440

UDIN: 24517440BKGTZS5328

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Repott of even date to the members of Medanta Holding
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Medanta Holdings Private Limited (‘the Company’)
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Chatged with Governance for Internal Financial Conttols

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAT). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by
the ICAT prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faitly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditutes of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Medanta Holdings
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (cont’d)

Inhetent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ot that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may detetiorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

2,000
\.k&c\\/\u S"k/
Madhu Sudan Malpani

Partner
Membership No.: 517440

UDIN: 24517440BKG'T'255328

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2024



Medanta Holdings Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
® in millions) ® in millions)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 6A 7,154.64 6,539.97
Capital work-in-progress 6A 982.35 1,587.76
Right of use asscts 6B 18.18 2294
Intangible assets 6C 10.43 2117
Intangible assets under development 6C 3.30 -
Financial assets
Other financial assets TA 55.32 52.88
Income-tax assets (net) 9 11.26 110.24
Other non-current assets 10A 23.93 30.92
Total non-current assets 8,259.41 8,365.88
Current assets
Inventories 11 110.84 123.00
Financial assets
Trade receivables 12 223.88 170.45
Cash and cash equivalents 13 1,764.27 912.97
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 16.65 13.51
Other financial assets B 37.70 40.57
Other current asscts 10B 29.84 18.92
Total current assets 2,183.18 1,279.42
Total assets 10,442.59 9,645.30
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 15A 742.15 T7.36
Instruments entirely equity in nature 15B - 24.79
Other equity 16 4,599.83 3,316.39
Total equity 5,341.98 4,058.54
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17A 2,953.56 3,804.01
Leasc liabilities 18A 17.94 21.95
Other financial liabilities 19A *397.00 359.74
Provisions 20A 45,18 34.08
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 241.58 188.05
Other non-current liabilities 21A 6.58 5.50
Total non-current liabilities 3,661,84 4,414.23
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17B 781.11 541,76
Lease liabilities 18B 6.58 7.06
Trade payables
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 22A 82.08 129.78
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 22B 162.20 191.52
Other financial liabilities 19B 142.55 149.31
Other current liabilities 21B 252.88 150.30
Provisions 20B 5.37 2.80
‘Total current liabilities 1,438.77 1,172,53
Total equity and liabilities 10,442.59 9,645.30
The accompanying notes to the financial statements including material accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No..001076N/N500013 )
o ‘ } a / ) (WS
Podh %Ud/../ e WW o '
Madhu Sudan Malpani Dr. Naresh Trehan Pankaj Sahni Pranab Bal Richa Gupta
Partner Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 517440 [DIN:00012148] [DIN:07132999]
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Lucknow Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024




Medanta Holdings Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

For the year ended For the year ended
Notes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(% in millions) ® in millions)

Income
Revenue from operations 23 6,971.63 5,695.54
Other income 24 75.50 23.76
Total income 7,047.13 5,719.30
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25A 1,301.99 1,122.74
Purchases of stock-in-trade 25B 193.47 161.26
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 25C 21.05 (6.82)
Employee benefits expense 26 876.63 710.32
Finance costs 27 349.97 304.40
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 468.35 389.89
Impairment losses on financial assets 29 12.20 1.56
Retainers and consultants fee 30A 1,239.65 1,008.22
Other expenses 30B 854.07 734.58
Total expenses 5,317.38 4,426,15
Profit before tax 1,729.75 1,293.15
Tax expense 3

Current tax 393.98 -

Deferred tax expense 53.23 347.51
‘Total tax expense 447.21 347.51
Profit after tax 1,282,54 945.64
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss

Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans 1.20 2.08

Income-tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss (0.30) 0.52)
Total other comprehensive income 0.90 1.56
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,283.44 947.20
Earnings per equity share 32

Basic and diluted () 17.28 12.74

"The accompanying notes to the financial statements including material accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.

"This is the statement of profit and loss teferred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors_
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:001076N/N500013 -~

Modha e = fopmﬂVéM oo

" il .

Madhu Sudan Malpani ~"Dr. Naresh Trchan Pankaj Sahni Pranab Bal Richa Gupta
Partner Director Director Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary
Membership No.: 517440 [DIN:00012148] [DIN:07132999]
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Lucknow Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024
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Medanta Holdings Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

A Equity share capital* (% in millions)
Particulars Opening Issue of equity Balance as at Opening Issue of equity | Balance as at
balance as at share capital 31 March 2023 balance as at share capital | 31 March 2024
01 April 2022 | during the year 01 April 2023 | during the year”
Liquity share capital 717.36 - T17.36 717.36 24.79 T42.15

O acconnt of conversion of comprdsorily convertible preference shares.

B Instruments entirely equity in nature®* (% in millions)
Particulars Opening balance as Issue of Balance as at  |Opening balance as Issue of Conversion int | Balance as at
at preference share| 31 March 2023 at preference equity share 31 March 2024
01 April 2022 capital during 01 April 2023 share capital |capital during the
the year during the year year
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 2479 - 24.79 24.79 = (24.79) -
C Other equity*®* (X in millions)
Particulars Capital contribution Reserves and surplus Total
from Holding Securities  |Retained earnings
Company premium
Balance as at 01 April 2022 20.00 2,797.75 (448.56) 2,369.19
Profit for the year = - 945.6+4 945.64
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (net of 1ax) - - 1.56 1.56
‘Total comprehensive income for the year - - 947.20 947.20
Balance as at 31 March 2023 20,00 2,797.75 498.64 3,316.39
Profit for the year = - 1,282.54 1,282.54
Other comprehensive income
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (net of tax) - - 0.90 0.90
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1,283.44 1,283.44
Balance as at 31 March 2024 20.00 2,791.75 1,782.08 4,599.83

*Refer wote 15A for details
**Refer note 15B for details
F*ERefer note 16 for details

The accompanying notes to the financial statements including material accounting policies and other explnatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.

This 1s the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date.

FFor Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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Madhu Sudan Malpani ‘ Dr. Naresh Trehan ahkaj Sahni Pranab Bal Richa Gupta
Partner Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 517440 [DIN:00012148] [DIN:07132999]

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Lucknow Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024 Date: 16 May 2024




Medanta Holdings Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2024

A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Fiance costs
Interest income on bank deposits
Interest income on income-tax refund
Grant income (on account of government grants)
Impairment losses on financial assets
! Unrealised foreign exchange loss/ (gain) (net)
| Provision for employee benefits (net)
‘ Operating profit before working capital changes
.
|

Movement in working capital
Inventories
Other current assets
Other financial assets
Trade receivables
Trade payables
Other current financial liabilities
Other liabilities
Cash flows from operations
Income-tax paid (net of refund)
Net cash flows from operating activities (A)

B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, intangible assets and intangible assets under
development (including capital advances, capital creditors and deferred payment liabilities)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipments
Movement in bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (net)
Movement in bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months (net)
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Repayments of non-current borrowings
Interest paid on borrowings
Interest paid on lease liabilities
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Other borrowing cost paid
Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note below)

Note: Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13)
Balances with banks in current accounts

Cash on hand

Bank deposits with original maturity less than three months

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended

31 March 2023

(® in millions)

® in millions)

1,729.75 1,293.15
468.35 389.89
349.97 30440
(6:4.26) (8.93)

(4.61) (4.38)
(1.73) (2.19)
12.20 1.56
334 (4.09)
1277 11.52
2,505.78 1,980.93
12.16 (23.01)
(10.92) (3.04)
1.26 (23.06)
(65.64) (100.03)
(77.02) 9235
7.36 11.19
104.77 3834

2,471.75 1,973.67
(290.40) (15.74)

2,187.35 1,957.93
(392.79) (739.51)

1.93 i gl
(3.15) 77587
(0.83) (456)
64.26 10.62

(330.58) (655.87)

2,500.00 4075

(3,160.42) (296.40)
(336.57) (346.44)

(274) (.16)
(4:49) (3.93)
(1.25) (21.35)

(1,005.47) (636.53)
851.30 665.53
912,97 24746

1,764.27 912.99
302,94 607.20

554 481

1,455.79 300.98
1,764.27 912.99

The accompanying notes to the financial statements including material accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these financial statements.

‘This is the statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

})\o 2 ;
Madhu Sudan l\‘lalpani' S Dr, Nares} han
Director
[DIN:00012148]

Partner
Membership No.: 517440

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2024

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2024

Date: 16 May 2024

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Lucknow
Date: 16 May 2024

{ /y(l! WO

Richa Gupta
Company Secretary

Place; Gurugram
Date: 16 May 2024
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5.1

Medanta Holdings Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements fot the year ended 31 March 2024

Background

Medanta Holdings Private Limited (‘the Company’) is engaged in the business of providing healthcare services. The
Company is domiciled in India and its registered office is situated at E — 18, Defence Colony, New Delhi — 110024.
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Global Health Limited (the ‘Holding Company’).

Genetal information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter refetred to as
the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of
the Act.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of
Directots on 16 May 2024. The revision to financial statements is permitted by Board of Directors after obtaining
necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for
certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value.

Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standatds) Rules as issued from time to time.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA") vide its notification dated 31 March 2023, notified the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see below), and are
effective 01 April 2023:

e Disclosure of accounting policies - amendments to Ind AS 1
e Definition of accounting estimates - amendments to Ind AS 8
e Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction - amendments to Ind AS 12

The other amendments to Ind AS notified by these rules are primarily in the nature of clarifications.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Material accounting policy information

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policy information and measurement
bases summarised below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

Cutrent versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle and
other criteria set out in Division IT of Schedule IIT of the Act. Based on the nature of the operations and the time
between the acquisition of assets for proccssmg/scwic'mg and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current/non-current classification
of assets and liabilities.
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5.2

Medanta Holdings Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing
cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for
the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Propetty, plant and
equipment purchased on deferred payment basis are recorded at equivalent cash price. The difference between the
cash price equivalent and the total payment is recognised as interest expense over the period until payment is made.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as apptopriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is de-
recognised when replaced. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as
incurred.

Items such as spare patts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment ate recognised as propetty, plant and
equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as
mventory.

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress includes property, plant and equipment under construction and not ready for intended use
as on the balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in statement of
profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Subsequent measnrement (depreciation and nseful lives)

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in
Schedule IT to the Act.

Asset class Useful life
Building 30 years
Medical equipments 5 to 15 yeats
Medical and surgical insttuments 3 years
Other plant and equipments 15 years
Electrical installation 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Information technology (I'T) equipment 3 to 6 years
Office equipment 5 years
Vehicles 6 to 8 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of are reviewed at the end of each financial year.




5.3

5.4

5.5

Medanta Holdings Ptivate Limited
Notes to the financial statements fot the yeat ended 31 March 2024

Intangible assets and intangible assets under development

Recognition and initial measurenient

Intangible assets (software) are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use.

Intangible assets under development are under development stage and not ready for intended use as on the balance
sheet date.

Subsequent measurement
The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a petiod of five years from the date of its acquisition.

De-recognition

Intangible asset is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset 1s
derecognised. :

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. Cost is calculated on weighted average
basis. Cost of these inventories comprises of all cost of purchase, taxes (except where credit is allowed) and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of purchased inventory is
determined after deducting rebates and discounts.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition and other income

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers /patients in an amount
that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. Revenue
is measured at transaction price net of rebates, discounts and taxes. A receivable is recognised by the Company when
the control is transferred as this is the case of point in time recognition where consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required. When either party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the
contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the
entity’s petformance and the payment. No significant element of financing is deemed present as the sales are either
made with a nil credit term or with a credit period of 0-90 days. The Company applies the revenue recognition
criteria to each component of the revenue transaction as set out below.

Tncomse from healtheare services

Revenue from healthcare services is recognized as and when related services are rendered and include services for
patients undergoing treatment and pending for discharge, which is shown as contract assets under other current
financial assets. The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine
the transaction price. The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for the services, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect
taxes).

Incomse from sale of pharmacy products fo oui-patients

Revenue from pharmacy products is recognized as and when the control of products is transferred to the customer.
The Company considers its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price
is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the products, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third patties (for example, indirect taxes).

Clinical research
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Medanta Holdings Ptivate Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yeat ended 31 March 2024

Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income is recognised in the accounting year in which the services are rendered as per the agreed terms
with the customers.

Revenre share from food conrt and pharmacyOther income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except for contingent rental income which
is recognised when it arises.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate (EIR). Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period they occur.

Leases
Company as a lessee — Right of use assets and lease liabilities

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, ot patt of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for
a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

Classification of leases

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for vatious assets. The assessment of the lease is based on several
factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s option to
extend,/putchase etc.

Recognition and initial measnrement of right of use assels

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end
of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives
received).

Subsequent nieasurement of right of use assets

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the
carlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Lease liabifities

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the
Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made
up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate.
Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is
re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.
When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset.

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a
right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these short-term leases are recognised as an expense
in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownetship of an asset are
classified as operating leases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.
Rental income 1s recognized on straight-line basis over the lease-term.




5.8

5.9

5.10

Medanta Holdings Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered
as a cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash
generating unit is made. Assets whose catrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its
value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each balance sheet date
as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may
no longer exist or may have decreased.

Foreign currency

Functional and presentation cervency

Ttems included in the financial statement of the Company are measuted using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements have been prepared
and presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between the
functional cutrency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using
the closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different
from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in
which they arise.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial nieasurenient

Financial assets (except trade receivables) and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for
transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair
value.

The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement
of profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether
the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT).

Non-derivative financial assets

Subsequent measuremient

Financial assets cartied at amortised cost — A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the

following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows;
and

o Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the ptincipal amount outstanding.
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Medanta Holdings Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

De-recagnition of financial liabifities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its financial assets and
the impairment methodology depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109 (‘Provision matrix
approach’), which requites measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measutes the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount
equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life
of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the
credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

5.12 Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax is recognised in statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Pl
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Medanta Holdings Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements fot the year ended 31 March 2024

The current income-tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted at the balance sheet date.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is provided in full, on temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporaty differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
cither to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits with the banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturity of three months and less.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, short-term bonus, incentives etc. These are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Defined contribution plan

Contribution towards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further
obligations. Such benefits are classified as defined contribution plan as the Company does not carry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis. In addition, contributions are made to employees’
state insurance schemes and labour welfare fund, which are also defined contribution plans recognized and
administered by the Government of India and Haryana respectively. The Company’s contributions to these schemes
are expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan

The Company has unfunded gratuity as defined benefit plan where the amount that an employce will receive on
tetitement is defined by reference to the employee’s length of service and final salary. The gratuity plan provides a
lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an
amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Company’s liability is
actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. This is based on standard
rates of inflation, salary growth rate and mortality.

Discount factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to matket yields on government bonds that
have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. Service cost and net interest expense on the
Company’s defined benefit plan is included in employee benefits expense.

Actuarial gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the defined benefit obligation are included in other
comprehensive income.
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Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides benefit of compensated absences to its employees (as per policy) which are in the nature
of long-term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to be
availed more than one year after the balance sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Service cost and net
interest expense on the Company’s other long-term employee benefits plan is included in employee benefits expense.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are also
recorded in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses arise.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions. When the grant relates to a revenue item, it
is recognized in statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the related costs are
expensed. The grant can either be presented separately or can deduct from related reported expense. Government
grant relating to capital assets are recognised initially as deferred income and are credited to statement of profit and
loss on a straight line basis over the expected lives of the related asset and presented within other operating income.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of past events,
for which it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made. Provisions required to settle are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary to
reflect the current best estimates of the obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time
value of money is matetial.

Contingent liability is disclosed unless the likelihood of an outflow of resources is remote and there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.

Contingent assets are disclosed only when inflow of econotnic benefits therefrom s probable and recognized only
when realization of income is virtually certain.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharcholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events
including a bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions as per
the requirement of Division IT of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requites the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting
policies. This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and
of items which are mote likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different
than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in
relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the consolidated

financial statements.
A 1
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a)

b)

d)

2)

h)

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on
an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income (supported by convincing evidence) against which
the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities.
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management assesses the
expected credit losses on outstanding receivables. Further, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with industry and country in
which the customer operates.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
dcpreciable/ amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties
in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utilisation of assets.

Leases — The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS
116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing
the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the
lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if the is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it
considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise
the option to extend the lease, ot not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the
lease term if thete is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

Government grant — Grants receivables are based on estimates for utilization of the grant as per the regulations
as well as analysing actual outcomes on a regular basis and compliance with stipulated conditions. Changes in
estimates or non-compliance of stipulated conditions could lead to significant changes in grant income and are
accounted for prospectively over the balance life of the asset.

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors
including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
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Medanta Holdings Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

6B Right of use assets*®

(% in millions)

Particulars Building Equipment Total
Gross block
Balance as at 01 April 2022 38.70 2.26 40.96
Additions s = i
Balance as at 31 March 2023 38.70 2.26 40.96
Additions = = -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 38.70 2.26 40.96
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April 2022 12,18 1.08 13.27
Charge for the year 4.30 0.45 4.75
Balance as at 31 March 2023 16.48 1.53 18.02
Charge for the year 4.35 0.41 4.76
Balance as at 31 March 2024 20.83 1.94 22.78
Net block as at 31 March 2023 22.22 0.73 22.94
Net block as at 31 March 2024 17.87 0.32 18.18
*Refer note 40 for details

6C Intangible assets and intangible assets under development (% in millions)
Particulars Software Intangible

assets under
development*#

Gross block
Balance as at 01 April 2022 56.10 -
Additions 2.62 -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 58.72 -
Additions 1.25 3.30
Balance as at 31 March 2024 59.97 3.30
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 01 April 2022 25,90 -
Chatge for the year 11.65 -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 37.55 -
Charge for the year 11.99 -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 49.54 -
Net block as at 31 March 2023 21.17 -
Net block as at 31 March 2024 10.43 3.30

#Refer note 41A for ageing schedule of intangible assets under development.
#Refer note 37 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets under development.

(This space has been intentionally lft blank)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Note -7

Other financial assets - non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)
Seccurity deposits

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months (refer note (i) and (i1) below)

Notes:

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

® in millions)

( in millions)

22,03 20,42
33.29 32.46
55.32 52.88

Bank deposits (excluding interest accrued) of Z 5.00 millions (31 March 2023: ¥ 5.00 millions) have been kept under lien as a security for servicing of interest of term loans.
Bank deposits (excluding interest accrued) of T 26.60 millions (31 March 2023: % 26.60 millions) are kept under licn with bank as margin money against the letter of credits issued.

Other financial assets - current

(Unsecured considered good)

Receivables from related parties (refer note 35)
Other receivables

Security deposits

Contract assets

Note - 8
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax assets arising on account of:
Employce benefits
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation
Expected credit loss on trade receivables
Tax impact of expenses which will be allowed on payment basis
Lease liabilitics
Others

Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts
Right of use assets

Notes:

7.46 1.60
3.60 777
: 1.00
26.64 30.20
37.70 4057
12.72 9.44
: 1378
419 112
52.94 37.63
6.17 7.30
7.29 0.95
83.31 70.22
(320.31) (252.50)
(4.58) (.77)
(324.89) (258.27)
(241.58) (188.05)

(i) The Company has unabsorbed business losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) amounting to ¥ Nil (31 March 2023: T 54.74 millions).

(i) Caption wise movement in deferred tax assets as follows:

(¥ in millions)

Particulars 01 April 2023 Recognised in other Recognised in 31 March 2024
comprehensive income | statement of profit and
loss
Assets
Employee benefits 9.44 0.30) 3.58 12.72
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 13.78 - (13.78) -
Expected credit loss on trade receivables 1.12 - 3.07 4.19
Tax impact of expenses which will be allowed on payment basis 37.63 - 15.31 52.94
Lease liabilities 7.30 - (1.13) 6.17
Others 0.95 - 6.34 7.29
Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (252.50) - (67.81) (320.31)
Right of use assets (5.77) - 1.19 (4.58)
Total (188.05) (0.30) (53.23) (241.58)
(¥ in millions)
Particulars 01 April 2022 Recognised in other Recognised in 31 March 2023
comprehensive income | statement of profit and
loss
Assets
Employee benefits 6.61 (0.52) 3.35 9.44
Unabsorbed business losses and depreciation 292.14 - (278.36) 13.78
Expected credit loss on trade receivables 0.72 - 0.40 112
Tax impact of expenses which will be allowed on payment basis 24.78 - 12.85 37.63
Lease liabilities 6.97 - 0.33 7.30
Others 7.34 - (6.39) 0.95
Liabilitics
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (170.29) - (82.21) (252.50)
Right of use asscts (8.29) - 2.52 (5.77)
Total 159.98 (0.52) (347.51) (188.05)
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As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
® in millions) ® in millions)
Note - 9
Income-tax assets (net)
Prepaid tax (net of provision for income-tax amounting to T 393.98 millions (31 March 2023: T Nil)) 11.26 110.24
11.26 110.24
Note - 10
Other non-current assets
Capital advances 23.93 30.92
23.93 30.92
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses 25.08 16.51
Advance to suppliers 4.75 1.60
Balances with government authorities 0.01 0.81
29.84 18.92
Note - 11
Inventories*#
Pharmacy, medical and laboratory consumables related to in-patient services 99.07 93.39
Pharmacy and medical consumables related to sale of pharmacy products to out-patient™ - 21.05
General stores 11.77 8.56
110.84 123.00
+ Valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. Write down of inventories to net realisable value by ¥ 1.08 millions (31 March 2023: T 5.20 millions).
# First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation, both present and future.
* During the year, the Company has shifted its pharmacy business to its fellow subsidiary company namely GHL. Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited.
Note - 12
Trade receivables*”
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured# 225.61 173.84
Trade receivables - credit impaired 14.91 1.05
240,52 174.89
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured (1.73) (3.39)
Trade receivables - credit impaired (14.91) (1.05)
(16.64) (4.44)
223.88 170.45
* Refer note 41B for ageing schedule of trade receivables.
# inter- alia, includes Z 11.56 millions (31 March 2023: Z 19.77 millions) receivables from related pasties (refer note 35).
~ First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation, both present and future.
Note - 13
Cash and cash cquivalents
Cash on hand 5.54 4.81
Balances with banks in current accounts® 302.94 607.19
Bank deposits with original maturity less than three months 1,455.79 300.97
1,764.27 912.97
*Includes balances with c-wallet and credit card companies amounting to ¥ 3.04 millions (31 March 2023: T 7.35 millions)
Note - 14
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank deposits with maturity of more than three months and upto twelve months (refer note (3), (ii) and (i) below) 16.65 13.51
16.65 13,51
Notes:
Bank deposits (excluding interest accrued) of Z 10.53 millions (31 March 2023: % 10.93 millions) have been kept under lien as a security for servicing of interest of term loans.
Bank deposits (excluding intecest accrued) of T 5.68 millions (31 March 2023: ¥ 3.81 millions) are kept under lien with bank as margin money against the letter of credits issued.
Bank deposits (excluding interest accrued) of T Nil (31 March 2023: T 0.15 millions) have been pledged with banks against guarantecs.
Note - 15
Equity share capital As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Authorised Number Amount Number Amount
(% in millions) (% in millions)
Equity share capital of face valuc of T 10 each 85,000,000 850.00 85,000,000 850.00
850.00 850.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity share capital of face value of T 10 each 74,215,270 742.15 71,736,341
742.15




Medanta Holdings Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Equity shares Number Amount Number Amount

(® in millions) (% in millions)
Balance as at the beginning of the year 71,736,341 717.36 71,736,341 717.36
Add: Issued during the year* 2,478,929 24.79 - -
Balance as at the end of the year 74,215,270 742,15 71,736,341 717.36

*On acconnt of conrersion.

iv Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The holders of equity shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. The dividend proposed
by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend.
v Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% of equity share capital and shares held by Holding Company
Name of the equity sharcholder Number %o Number %
Global Health Limited* 74,215,270 100.00% 71,736,341 100.00%
Hcludes one share held by Dr. Naresh Treban as a nominee of the Holding Company, Giobal Health Limited.
vi Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash, by way of bonus shares and shares bought
back for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date
The Company did not issue any shares pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash.
The Company did not issue bonus shares.
The Company has not undertaken any buy back of shares.
vii Details of promoter shareholding
For details, refer note 41E.
B Instruments entirely equity in nature
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
i Authorised Number Amount Number Amount
(% in millions) (% in millions)
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of face value of T 10 each 15,000,000 150.00 15,000,000 150.00
150.00 150.00
———
ii Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Compulsorily convertible preference shares of face value of % 10 each - - 2,478,929 24.79
- 24.79
iii Reconciliation of number of compulsorily convertible preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Compulsorily convertible preference shares Number Amount Number ~ Amount
(® in millions) (% in millions)
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,478,929 24.79 2,478,929 24,79
Less: Conversion into equity sharc capital during the year (2,478,929) (24.79) - -
Balance as at the end of the year - - 2,478,929 24,79
iv Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to compulsorily convertible preference shares
These shares were non-cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPS') having no dividend and voting rights. The shares were convertible into equity shares as per the
events and conditions stated below:-
Conversion event (earlier of the following) Conversion ratio
1 [At the option of the Company; E
- O » share for each preference sh
2 [10 years from the date of issuance and allotment of the respective CCPS. e equily shaze fo BEEIRIRAEs S
During the year, compulsorily convertible preference shares have been converted into equity shates in the conversion ratio of 1:1.
v Details of shareholder holding more than 5% of CCPS and shares held by the Holding Company
Name of the equity shareholder Number Yo Number Ya
Global Health Limited - - 2,478,929 100.00%
vi Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash, by way of bonus CCPS and CCPS$ bought
back for the period of 5 years immediately preceding the balance sheet date
The Company did not issuc any CCPS pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash.
The Company did not issue bonus CCPS.
The Company has not undertaken any buy back of CCPS.
vii Details of promoter sharcholding

For details, refer note 41E.
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As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

® in millions)

® in millions)

Note - 16

Other equity

Capital contribution from the Holding Company

Opening balance 20.00 20.00

Add: Movement during the year - -

Closing balance 20.00 20.00

Reserves and surplus

Securities premium

Opening balance 2,797.75 2,797.75

Add: Movement during the year - -

Closing balance 2,197.75 2,797.75

Retained earnings

Opening balance 498.64 (448.56)

Add: Profit for the year 1,282.54 945.64

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year 0.90 1.56

Closing balance 1,782.08 498.64
4,599.83 3,316.39

Nature and purpose of reserves
Capital contribution from the Holding Company

Capital contribution includes the amount of Served for India Scheme (SFIS') licence obtained by the Holding Company and transferred to the Company basis the exports made by the

Holding Company.

Securities premium

Seccurities premium account represents the premium on issue of shares. The account is utilised in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

(iii) Retained earnings

2)
0]

(i)

Retained carnings comprises of current year and prior years undistributed earnings or losses after tax.

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

® in millions)

( in millions)

Note - 17A

Borrowings - non-current
Secured loans

Term loans*

From banks [refer note (a) below] 1,377.64 4,153.30
Less: Current maturities of long-term loan (refer note 17B) (303.90) (541.76)
1,073.74 3,611.54

Unsecured loans
Term loans¥

From Holding Company# [refer note (a) below] 2,127.17 -

Less: Current maturities of long-term loan from Holding Company (refer note 17B) (483.21) =
1,643.96 -

Deferred payment liabilities [refer note (b) below] 235.860 192.47
2,953.56 3,804.01

Repayment terms (including current maturities) and security details:

During the current year, the Company has taken new unsecured term loan facility from its Holding Company amounting to ¥ 2,500 millions. The loan is repayable in 19 quartecly
installments stacting from 30 June 2023. The outstanding amounts as at 31 March 2024 is repayable in 15 quarterly instalments. The rate of interest as on 31 March 2024 is 8.40% per
annum and interest is payable monthly.

The Company had loan facility from Yes Bank Limited ('YBL) amounting to ¥ 5,000.00 millions, out of which YBL had novated Z 500.00 millions to State Bank of India (SBI). During
the previous year, the Company has refinanced its existing outstanding YBL's term facility of ¥ 3,880.27 millions through SBI and HDFC Bank Limited (HDFC) as ¥ 1,750.12 millions
and ¥ 2,130.15 millions respectively. During the current year, the Company has borrowed funds from its Holding Company and repaid ¥ 1,250 millions cach for both the facilities from
SBI and HDFEC, accordingly repayment plans for both the facilities were revised. The outstanding amount as at 31 March 2024 pertaining to HDFC is repayable in 16 quarterly
instalments. The rate of interest as on 31 March 2024 is 8.95% per annum and interest is payable monthly. The details related to SBI's facility is presented as part of point number (i)
below.
The loan is secured by way of fiest pari passu charge on -

- equitable mortgage on Medanta Hospital in Lucknow (in this note referred as 'the Project’) land admeasuring 12.50 acres and building;

- all current assets and movable property, plant and equipment of the Project;

- the Project's book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, commission, revenue of whatsoever nature and wherever arising and intangible asscts (excluding goodwill) pertaining to
the Project; and

- all the Project's bank accounts including but not limited to Trust and Retention Account (TRA).
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The Company has existing loan facility with State Bank of India (SBI') amounting to % 500.00 millions. Further, during the previous year, through refinancing (as explained above), this
facility aggregates to T 2,230.37 millions as on the date of refinancing. During the current year, the Company has borrowed funds from its Holding Company and repaid ¥ 1,250
millions for the new term loan facility, accordingly repayment plans for the term loan facility was revised. The outstanding amount as at 31 March 2024 is repayable in 16 quarterly

instalments. The rate of interest as on 31 March 2024 is 8.40% per annum and interest is payable monthly.

The loan is secured by way of first pari-passu charge on -

- equitable mortgage on Medanta Hospital in Lucknow (in this note referred as 'the Project’) land admeasuring 12.50 acres and building;
- all current assets and movable property, plant and equipment of the Project;

- the Project’s book debts, operating cash flows, receivables, commission, revenue of whatsoever nature and wherever arising and intangible assets (excluding goodwill) pertaining to

the Project; and

- all the Project's bank accounts including but not limited to Trust and Retention Account (TRA).
The borrower shall maintain a debts service reserve account (DSRA) for T 5.00 millions on existing loan facility of ¥ 500.00 millions.

The funds raised through term loan have been utilised for the purpose approved in the sanction letter/agreement.

This represents liability for medical equipment purchased on deferred payment terms to be repaid from January 2026.

* Refer note 41D for other details.
# Refer note 35 for details of related party.

(X in millions)

Particulars Borrowings Finance cost® Total
Non-current**
01 April 2023 4,153.30 15.13 4,168.42
Cash and non-cash movements:
- Proceeds from borrowings 2,500.00 - 2,500.00
- Payments made (3,160.42) - (3,160.42)
- Interest expense (including interest capitalised) - 338.49 338.49
- Interest paid # (336.57) (336.57)
- Non-cash adjustments 11.94 (11.94) -
31 March 2024 3,504.82 5.11 3,509.93
** Including current maturities
~ Opening and closing balances represent interest accrued outstanding at the respective year end.
( in millions)
Particulars Borrowings ~ Finance cost® Total
Non-current®*
01 April 2022 4,428.47 27.66 4,456.13
Cash and non-cash movements:
- Proceeds from borrowings 40.75 - 40.75
- Payments made (296.40) - (296.40)
- Interest expense (including interest capitalised) - 341.74 341,74
- Interest paid . (346.44) (346.44)
- Non-cash adjustments 783 (7.83) -
- Payment of upfront fees (27.35) - (27.35)
31 March 2023 4,153.30 15.13 4,168.42
** Including current maturities
~ Opening and closing balances represent interest accrued outstanding at the respective year end.
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Note - 17B
Borrowings - current
Secured

Term loans

® in millions)

® in millions)

Current maturities of long-term loan 303.90 541.76
Unsecured
Term loans - -

Current maturities of long-term loan from Holding Company* 483.21 -

787.11 541.76
* Refer note 35 for details of related party.
Note - 18
Lease liabilities - non-current
Lease liabilities (refer note 40) 17.94 21.95
17.94 21.95
Lease liabilities - current
Lease liabilitics (refer note 40) 6.58 7.06
6.58 7.06
The changes in the Company’s lease liabilities (cucrent and non-current) arising from financing activitics can be classified as follows: ( in millions)
Particulars Amount
01 April 2022 32,94
Interest on lease liabilitics 3.16
Payment of lease liabilities ‘b‘\)‘,oal:gj.ﬁe_o (7.09)
31 March 2023 [/ NN\ 29,01
Interest on lease liabilitics 2 EX (E( M )-;-l} 274
Payment of lease liabilities w HPL | e (7.23)
31 March 2024 [/ \ SRR 1o/ 24.52
=] i
\&\ 2 N
\ /=]
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Note = 19

Other financial liabilitics - non-current

Custom duty payable related to export promotion capital goods scheme®
Interest accrued#

* Refer note 46 for reclassifications/regrouping in previous year balances.
# Includes interest on custom duty payable related to export promotion capital goods scheme.

Other financial liabilities - current
Interest accrued

Capital creditors*#

Employee related payables

Other liabilitics

* inter-alia, includes Nil (31 March 2023: T 1.87 millions) payable to related partics (refer note 35).

# inter-alia, includes Z 5.94 millions (31 March 2023: T 472 millions) payable to micro enterprises and small enterprises.

Note - 20

Provisions - non-current

Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (refer note 38)
Compensated absences

Provisions - current

Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity (refer note 38)
Compensated absences

Note - 21
Other non-current liabilities#*
Deferred government grants

# Refer note 46 for reclassifications/regrouping in previous year balances.
QOther current liabilities
Advance from customers

Payable to statutory authoritics
Deferred government grants*®

* Deferred government grants

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

® in millions)

(% in millions)

229.68 230.51
167.32 129.23
397.00 359.74
5.11 15.13
102.77 106.87
29.81 23.03
4.86 4.28
142.55 149.31
28.27 20.34
1691 14.64
45,18 34.98
1.62 0.08
3.75 2.72
5.37 2.80
6.58 5.50
6.58 5.50
213.51 123.54
38.48 2612
0.89 0.64
252.88 150.30

( in millions)

Particulars Amount
Balance as at 01 April 2022 -
‘Add : Reclassified from custom duty payable related to deferred government grants# 8.33
Less : Released to statement of profit and loss 2.19)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 6.14
Add : Reclassified from custom duty payable related to deferred government grants# 3.06
Less : Released to statement of profit and loss (1.73)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 747
## During the curvent year and previous year; the Comipany has completed its obiigation against certain export promotion capital goods schemre licenses and accordingdy, this has been re-instated,
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Note - 22
Trade payables®
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises®

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Due to related parties (refer note 35)
Due to others

“Refer note 41C for ageing schedule of trade payables

(® in millions)

(X in millions)

82.08 129.78
82.08 129.78

117 5.35
154.43 186.17
162.20 191.52
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*Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act, 2006”)

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(% in millions) (% in millions)
i) [the principal amount and the interest duc thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year; 82.08 129.78
ii) |the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond - -
the appointed day during each accounting year;
iif) [the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed| - -
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006;
iv) [the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 0.50 0.09

v) [the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.

(This space has been intentionally Ieft blank)
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Note - 23

Revenue from operations*"

Income from healthcare services
In patient
Qut patient

Income from sale of pharmacy products to out-patients
Sale of pharmacy products

Other operating revenuc#
Grant income (on account of government grants)
Clinical research income
Income from sponsorship and training
Revenue share from food court and pharmacy
Other operating revenue

* Refer note 35 for details of related party.
~ Refer note 43 for details.

# Refer note 46 for reclassifications/ regrouping in previous year balances.

Note - 24

Other income

Interest income on bank deposits
Interest income on income-tax refund
Foreign exchange gain (net)
Miscellancous income*#

* Refer note 35 for details of related party.

# Refer note 46 for reclassifications/ regrouping in previous year balances.

Note - 25A
Cost of materials consumed

Pharmacy, medical and laboratory consumables related to in-patient services

Opening stock

Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock
Materials consumed (A)

General stores

Opening stock

Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock
Materials consumed (B)
Total (A+B)

Note - 25B

Pharmacy, medical and laboratory consumables related to sale of pharmacy related to out-patients

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Note - 25C

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Inventories at the end of the year
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Materials consumed

Note - 26

Employee benefits expense*

Salaries and wages#

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

* Refer note 6A(jii) for capitalisation details.
# Refer note 46 for reclassifications/ regrouping in previous year balances.

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

(% in millions)

(% in millions)

5,615.88 4,688.44
987.75 748.11
343.56 240.80

1.73 2.19
239 3,06
1.48 171
14.67 7.960
417 327
6,971.63 5,695.54
64.26 8.93
4.61 438

- 4.09
6.03 6.36
75.50 23.76
93,39 79.86
1,282.04 1,109.87
99.07 93.39
1,276.36 1,096.34
8.56 5.90
28.84 29.06
11.77 8.56
25.63 26.40

1,301.99 1,122.74
193.47 161.26
193.47 161.26

2105 14.23
. (21.05)
21.05 (6.82)
214,52 154.44
812.53 665.99
48.24 42.04
15.86 2.29
876.63 710.32
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For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

(¥ in millions)

(X in millions)

Note - 27
Finance costs”®
Interest on term loans™ 291.60 268.21
Interest on lease liabilities 2.74 3.16
Interest on deferred payment liabilities 1630 227
Interest on custom duty payable related to export promotion capital goods scheme 38.08 30.73
Other borrowing costs 1.25 0.03
349.97 304.40
* Refer note 35 for details of related party.
 Refer note 6A(iii) for capitalisation details.
Note - 28
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 451.60 373.50
Depreciation on right of use assets 4.76 4.74
Amortisation of intangible assets 11.99 11.65
468.35 389.89
Note - 29
Impairment losses on financial assets
Expected credit loss on trade receivables 12.20 1.56
12,20 1.56
Note - 30A
Retainers and consultants fee
Retainers and consultants fee 1,239.65 1,008.22
1,239.65 1,008.22
Note - 30B
Other expenses*#
Power and fucl 169.02 151.02
Lease rent
Premises 3.87 3.99
Lquipments** 69.19 78.43
Repair and maintenance
Eiquipment 3833 29.44
Building 11.56 718
Rates and taxes 11.23 9.05
Training and recruitment expenses 5.67 9.47
Insurance 6.42 5.67
Travelling and conveyance 19.49 17.26
Communication expenses 6.10 4.37
Payments to the auditor as:
Auditor (including taxes) 3.06 271
For other services (including taxes) 0.14 0.12
For reimbursement of expenses (including taxes) 0.18 0.08
Pantry expenses 66.36 56.93
Laundry expenses 26.24 24.23
Security expenses 39.14 3297
Facility management expenses 214.59 178.57
Advertisement and sales promotion 31.78 19.07
Legal and professional expenses 24.60 26.33
Printing and stationery 30.08 23.32
Bank charges 23.59 18.61
Foreign exchange loss (net) 3.34 -
Outsourced laboratory expenses 20.93 18.00
Corporate social responsibility™ 7.05 -
Miscellaneous expenses 2211 17.96
854.07 734.58

* Refer note 6A(ii) for capitalisation details.
# Refer note 46 for reclassifications/regrouping in previous year balances.

sk This, inter alia, includes expenses related to the lease rentals (towards the lease of the equipment) including the expenses pertaining to the selated laboratory consumables. Since
the bifurcation of expense between the lease (towards the cquipment rent) and the non-lease component (towards consumables) is not available with the Company, hence, in
accordance with Tnd AS 116 ‘Leases’ the Company has opted to present the entire expense as lease expenses.
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For the ycar ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(X in millions) (X in millions)
A Corporate social responsibility ('CSR') expenditure
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 7.05 -
Amount approved by the Board of Directors to be spent during the year 7.05
Amount spent during the year on:
Construction/acquisition of any asset g =
On purposes other than above 205 -
Shortfall at end the of the year 5.00 -
Total of previous year shortfall - -
‘Total shortfall 5.00 -
Reason for shortfall Refer note (i) below
Nature of CSR activities Refer note (i) below -
Notes:

(i) As per sub-section 6 of section 135 of the Act, the Company has deposited remaining unspent amount of  5.00 million, pursuant to the ongoing project of the Company for
Tuberculosis (‘TB') free Uttar Pradesh, in a special account on 24 April 2024.

(ii) The Company has given donation to "Medanta Foundation Poor and Needy Patient Welfare Trust" and "Uttar Pradesh TB free campaign" during the current year.

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(¥ in millions) (T in millions)
Note - 31
Tax expenses
Current tax 393.98 -
Deferred tax expense 53.23 347.51
Tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 447.21 347.51

"The major components of the reconciliation of expected tax expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company at 25.168% and the reported tax expense in the
statement of profit and loss are as follows:

Accounting profit before income tax 1,729.75 1,293.15
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2023: 25.168%) 435.34 325.46

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:

Tax impact of statutory deduction allowed as per Income-tax act, 1961 under the head income from 'House Property’ (1.19) 0.74)
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed . 2.09 -
Tax impact of earlier year items 3.35 14.28
Others 7.62 8,51
Income tax expense 447,21 347.51
Note - 32

Earnings per share (EPS)

Earnings per share (BEPS') is determined based on the net profit attributable to the shareholders. Basic earnings per shate is computed using the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted carnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive equivalent equity shares outstanding during the
year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(% in lakhs) (% in lakhs)

Profit attributable to equity sharcholders for basic and diluted EPS 1,282.54 945.64
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS* 74,215,270 74,215,270
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS 74,215,270 74,215,270
Earnings per equity share

Basic and diluted 17.28 12.74

#The Company had compulsorily convertible preference shares which were expected to be converted into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 during the previous year and were duly
considered in calculation of basic earning per share of previous year. During the current year, these compulsorily convertible preference shares were convested into equity shares of
the Company.
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(i)

®

(i)

Note - 33

Fair value disclosures

Fair value hierarchy

The following explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used
in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either dircctly or indirectly.
Level 3: unobservable inputs for the assct or liability.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair value

The fair value of the financial instruments are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants. The following methods were used to estimate the fair values:-

- Cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents, trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilities:
Approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturitics of these instruments.

- Borrowings taken by the Company are as per the Company's credit and liquidity risk assessment and there is no comparable instrument having similar terms and conditions with

related security being pledged and hence the carrying value of the borrowings represents the best estimate of fair value.

Fair value of assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair value are disclosed

(& in millions)

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,764.27 1,764.27 912.97 912.97
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents 16.65 16.65 13.51 13.51
Trade receivables 223.88 223.88 170.45 170.45
Other financial assets 93.02 93.02 93.45 93.45
Total financial assets 2,097.82 2,097.82 1,190.38 1,190.38
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 3,740.67 3,740.67 4,345.77 4,345.17
‘Trade payables 244.28 244.28 321.30 321.30
Other financial liabilities 539.55 539.55 509.05 509.05
‘Total financial liabilities 4,524.50 4,524.50 5,176.12 5,176.12
Note - 34
Financial risk management
Financial instruments by category* ® in millions)
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Amortised cost Amortised cost
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,764.27 912.97
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16.65 13.51
Trade receivables 223.88 170.45
Other financial assets 93.02 93.45
‘Total financial assets 2,097.82 1,190,38
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 3,740.67 4,345.77
Trade payables 24428 321.30
Other financial liabilities 539.55 509.05
Total financial liabilities 4,524.50 5,176.12

¥There are no financial assets and liabilities which are measurcd at fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss.

Risk management

The Company’s activitics expose it to market risk (foreign exchange and interest risk), liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's Board of Ditectors have overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the

risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk

Exposure arising from

Measurement

Management

Credit risk

Cash and cash equivalents, bank
balances other than cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and other
financial asscts

Ageing analysis

Diversification of bank deposits and
credit limits and regular monitoring and
follow ups.

Liquidity risk

Borrowings, trade payables and other
financial liabilities

Cash flow forecasts

Availability of committed credit lines and
borrowing facilities.

Market risk — foreign exchange

Recognised financial assets and liabilitics
not denominated in Indian rupee

Cash flow forecasting, sensitivity analysis

Forward foreign exchange contracts.

Market risk — interest rate

Borrowings at variable rates

Sensitivity analysis

Diversification of borrowings.
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(a) Creditrisk

i)

Credit risk management
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial asset fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of cach financial asset. The carrying amounts of financial asscts represents the maximum credit risk exposure.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments as per agreed terms. This definition of default is determined by considering the business
environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

The Company has a credit risk management policy in place to limit credit losses due to non-performance of counterparties. The Company monitors its exposure to credit risk on an
ongoing basis. Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Where loans and reccivables are written off, the Company continues to engage in
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the dues.

Trade receivables

The Company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of the receivables through internal systems that are configured to define credit limits of customers, thereby, limiting the credit
risk to pre-calculated amounts. The Company has used simplificd approach (lifetime expected credit loss model) for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade
receivables. Expected credit losses are measured on collective basis for each of the following categories:

Assumptions

Category

Inputs for measurement of expected

Government

Information on deductions made by
government agencics in past years

Trade reccivables outstanding for more than three years are considered
irrecoverable. Allowance for expected credit loss on receivables outstanding for

b)
i)

less than three years is recognised based on expected deductions by government
agencies.

Non-government

Individual _ customer  wise  trade| Trade reccivables outstanding for more than one year are considered irrecoverable.
receivables and information obtained|Other receivables are considered good due to ongoing communication with

Individuals

through sales recovery follow ups customers.

outstanding[ Trend of collections made by the Company over a period of six years preceding
balance sheet date and considering default to have occurred if receivables are not

Collection against
receivables in past years

Corporates

collected for more than three years.

outstanding| Trade receivables outstanding for more than three years are considercd
irrecoverable. Allowance for expected credit loss on receivables outstanding for
less than three years is recognised based on expected deductions by third party
administrators.

Third party administrators of insurance companies | Collection against
receivables in past years

Cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equiratents
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only investing in deposits with highly rated banks and financial institutions and diversifying bank
deposits and accounts in different banks. Credit risk is considered low because the Company deals with highly rated banks and financial institution.

Other financial assets

Other financial asscts measured at amortized cost includes security deposits and other reccivables, Credit risk related to these fiancial assets is managed by monitoring the
recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal control system are in place to ensure the amounts are within defined limits. Credit risk is considered low
because the Company is in possession of the underlying assct (in case of sccurity deposit) or as per trade experience (in case of contact assets from patient and other receivables
from revenue sharing arrangements). Further, the Company creates provision by assessing individual financial asset for expectation of any credit loss basis 12 months expected credit
loss model.

Credit risk exposure
Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach i.e. provision matrix approach using historical trends.

As at 31 March 2024 (% in millions)
Particulars Government Non-government
Individuals Corporates Third party Total
administrators of
insurance
companies
Gross carrying value 14.73 4.10 60.30 161.39 240,52
Less: Expected credit loss (impairment) 0.49) (2.30) 2.13) (11.72) (16.64)
Carrying value (net of impairment) 14.24 1.80 58.17 149.67 223.88
As at 31 March 2023 ( in millions)
Particulars Government Non-government
Individuals Corporates Third party Total
administrators of
insurance
companies
Gross carrying value 28.41 2.20 3.98 140.30 174.89
Less: Expected credit loss (impaicment) - - - (4.44) (4.44)
Carrying value (net of impairment) 28.41 2.20 3.08 135.86 170.45
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Expected credit losses for other financial assets
‘The Company provides for 12 month credit losses for following financial assets —

As at 31 March 2024

(% in millions

Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit losses

Carrying amount net of impairment

carrying amount at provision
default
Cash and cash cquivalents 1,764.27 - 1,764.27
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 16.65 s 16.65
Other financial asscts 93.02 - 93.02

As at 31 March 2023

(% in millions

Particulars Estimated gross Expected credit losses Carrying amount net of impairment
carrying amount at provision
default
Cash and cash cquivalents 912.97 - 912.97
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 13.51 - 13.51
Other financial assets 93.45 - 93.45

Reconciliation of expected credit loss for trade receivables (measured at lifetime expected credit level)

(® in millions)

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Trade receivables

Loss allowance on 01 April 2022 2.88
Allowance for expected credit loss 1.56
Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 4.44
Allowance for expected credit loss 12.20
Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 16.64

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mecting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics as and when they are duc.

The Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Management monitors the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash

equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows (also comprising the undrawn borrowing facilitics as well).

‘The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The following arc the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting datc. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include contractual interest payments

and exclude the impact of netting agreements.
As at 31 March 2024

(% in millions)

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-3 years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 787.11 2,129.56 831.59 3,748.26
Lease liabilities 6.94 14.91 8.46 30.31
Trade payables 244.28 E E 244,28
Other financial liabilities 420.96 37.94 80.65 539.55
Total 1,459.29 2,182.41 920.70 4,562.40
As at 31 March 2023 (X in millions)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1- 3 years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 541.76 1,774.32 2,029.69 4,345,77
Lease liabilities 713 14.26 16.97 38.36
Trade payables 321.30 : = 321.30
Other financial liabilities 149.32 357.17 2.56 509.05
Total 1,019.51 2,145.75 2,049.22 5,214.48
The Company also has access to the following undrawn borrowing from banks at the end of the reporting year. (X in millions)
Particulars Agat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
- 240.47

Undrawn borrowing facilitics

Market risk
Foreign exchange risk
The Company has international transactions and is exposed to forcign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions (imports

and exports). Foreign exchange risk arises

from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company’s functional currency. The Company has not hedged its

forcign exchange receivables and payables as at 31 March 2023.

Foreign currency risk exposure:

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Foreign currency Angunt Foreign currency R rourit
( in millions) (X in millions)
Liabilities
Deferred payment liabilities usD 268.21 usD 241.09
Total 268.21 241.09
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Sensitivity

financial instruments.

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises from foreign currency denominated (% in millions)
Particulars Currency For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Exchange rate Exchange rate Exchange rate Exchange rate
increase by 1% decrease by 1% | increase by 5% | decrease by 5%
Liabilities
Deferred payment liabilities usD (2.68) 2.68 (12.05) 12.05

(ii) Interest rate risk

The exposure of the Company's borrowing (excluding deferred payment liabilitics) to interest rate changes at the end of reporting year are as follows:

The Company’s variable rate borrowing (excluding deferred payment liabilities) is subject to interest rate risk. Below is the overall exposure of the borrowing:
pany 4 & pay J P it

(% in millions)

Particul As at As at 31 March
. 51 March 2024 2023
Variable rate borrowing 3,504.81 4,153.30
Total borrowings 3,504.81 4,153.30

Sensitivity

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

(& in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Interest rates Interest rates Interest rates Interest rates
increase by 50 decrease by 50 | decrease by 100 | decrease by 100
basis basis basis basis
Finance cost of variable rate borrowing (17.52) 17.52 (41.53) 41.53

(This space has been iutentionally fefi blank)
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Note - 35

Related party transactions

In accordance with the -equirements of Ind AS 24, Related party disclosures, the names of the related parties, transactions and year-end balances with them as idenufied and certified
by the management are given below:

i) Holding Company Global ITealth Limited

ii) Key management personnel (KMP) Dr. Naresh Trehan, Nominee disector
Dr. Rakesh Kapoor, Manager
Mt Sunil Sachdeva, Nominee director
Mr. Ravi Kant Jaipuria, Nominee director
Ms. Praveen Mahajan, Director
Mr. Pankaj Sahni, Director (with effect from 09 February 2023)
Mr. Pranab Bal, Chief financial officer

iii) Close member of key management personnels Dr. Rohit Kapoor (son of Dr. Rakesh Kapoor)
iv) Enterprises over which KMPs are able to exercise control/joint control IFAN Global India Private Limited
with whom transactions have been undertaken Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited (tull 24 August 2023)

Devyani International Limited
Language Architecture Body (LAB)

v) Fellow subsidiaries Global Health Patliputra Private Limited
GHL Hospital Limited (from 11 December 2023)
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formedly known as
Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(a) Transactions with related parties carried out in the ordinary cousse of business:

(X in millions)

Serial |Particulars Year ended Related parties Total
Number Holding Key management Fellow Enterprises over which KMPs
Company | personnel and its | subsidiaries are able to exercise
relatives control/joint control
1 Purchase of property, plant and equipment
: 21 March 2024 - _ 2 =
Global Hezlth Litnited
: 31 March 2023 1.80 - - - 1.80
2 Sale of property; plant and equipment
p 31 March 2024 1.74 - 3 = 1.74
Global Health Limited
31 March 2023 - - i =
3 Purchase of pharmacy, medical and laboratory
consumables related to in-patient services
31 March 2024 2 . = - i
Global Health Limated
31 March 2023 1.13 = - - 1.13
4 Sale of pharmacy, medical and laboratery consumables
related to in-patien* services
o 31 March 2024 0.1 , 7 - 0.1
Global Health Limited
31 March 2023 3.15 - - - 3.15
5 Recruitment expenses
- e 5 5 31 March 2024 i = = = -
TEAN Global India Private Limited
31 March 2023 - - - 0.76 0.76
6 Legal and professional expenses
A S o 31 Narch 2024 = 8 R 043 0.43
i age f tecture j
PR 31 March 2023 - - - 5.01 5.01
: 31 March 2024 14.73 - - - 14.73
Global Health Limited
31 March 2023 16.67 = - 16.67
7 Qutsourced laboratory expenses
o 31 March 2024 12.49 = - e 12.49
Global Health Limited =
31 March 2023 9.63 - - 9.63
8 Interest on borrowings
5. 31 March 2024 195.56 - - - 195.56
Global Health Limited TRy e - = . =
9 Borrowings taken
g 202 2,500.00 - 2,500.00
Global Health Limited Ml AL 2
31 March 2023 - - - - -
10 Borrowings repuid
2 i 202 372.83 - - - 372.83
Global Health Limited ABMarch 2028
31 March 2023 - 5 - B =
11 Revenue from healthearc services
- . L. 31 March 2024 = = - 42.01 42.01
Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited =
31 March 2023 - - - 91.28 91,28
12 Revenue share from food court
. 31 March 2024 . = - 948 9.48
Devyani International Limited
31 March 2023 - - - 9.39 9.39
13 Reimbursement of expenses
; y - 31 March 2024 B - 1.02 1.02
Devyani International Limited -
31 March 2023 - - - 1.07 1.07
14 Revenue share from diagnostic services
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known| 31 March 2024 - - 12.85 - 12.85
as Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2023 - . - - -
15 Revenue share from pharmacy
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known| 31 March 2024 - - 5.19 - 5.19
as Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2023 - o -
16 Miscellaneous income (Rental income)
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known| 31 March 2024 - - 0.89 - 0.89
as Global Heaith Pharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2023 - - - £ =
17 Amount collected on behalf of
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known| 31 March 2024 - 3.30 - 3.30
as Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2023 - - - & &
18 Retainership fees
. 31 March 2024 . 4.85 _ 4,85
Dr. Rohit Kapoor
31 March 2023 - 3.38 - - 3.38
19 Salaries and other benefits
St ! beneh 31 March 2024 - 31.60 - - 31.60
Short-term employcee benefits 31 March 2023 = TR = - 2030
Post lov benehi 31 March 2024 - 0.22 - - 0.22
ost-employment benefits 31 Macch 2023 5 0.93 5 = 0.93
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(b) Closing

balance with related parties in the ordinary course of business :

R in millions

Serial Particulars Year ended Related parties Total
Number Holding Key management Fellow |Enterprises over which KMPs
Company personnel subsidiarics are able to exercise
control/joint control
1 Equity share capital
31 March 2024 2.15 - 5 = 742.15
Global Health Limited ! {hiis
31 Marcih 2023 717.36 = - - 717.36
2 Compulsorily convertible preference shares
35 19 31 March 2024 = - R &
Global Health Limited
31 March 2023 24.79 £ - - 24.79
3 Capital contribution from the Holding Company
31 March 2024 20. 2 < = 20.00
Global Health Limited — L
31 March 2023 20,00 - - - 20.00
4 Unsecured loan
o 31 March 2024 2,127.17 - e - 2,127.17
5lobal Health L ed . 2
Global Health Limite 1 March 2023 - - = 2 =
5 Capital creditors
5o 31 March 2024 ! 5 5 - -
Global Health Limited -
31 March 2023 0.02 - - - 0,02
. 31 March 2024 - . R < P
Language Architecture Body -
31 March 2023 - - - 1.85 1.85
6 ‘Trade and other payables
31 March 2024 ] e 4.47
Global Health Limited arch 447
31 March 2023 4.76 - = - 4.76
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known| 31 March 2024 3.30 - - 3.30
as Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2023 - = = - -
31 March 2024 2 - _ ~ =
Dr. Rakesh Kapoor
31 March 2023 - 0.49 - - 0.49
4 31 March 2024 % - - z s
Dr. Rohit Kapoor
31 March 2023 - 0.10 - = 0.10
7 Trade receivables
GIIL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known| 31 March 2024 - - 11.56 - 1156
as Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limted) 31 March 2023 _ B - = @
o ; s 31 March 2024 = = - ~ =
Raksha Health Insurance TPA Private Limited
31 March 2023 - - - 19.77 19.77
8 Other receivables
) . . 31 Narch 2024 , , ; 041 0.41
Devyani International Limited
31 March 2023 - - - 0.56 0.56
31 March 2024 (). - = 2 0.49
Global Health Limited : 49
31 March 2023 1.04 - - - 1.04
GHL Pharma & Diagnostic Private Limited (formerly known| 31 March 2024 - - 6.56 - 6.56
as Global Health Pharmaceutical Private Limited) 31 March 2023 - N - = -
(c) All teansactions with related parties are made on the terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and within the ordinary course of business. All outstanding

balances are unsecured and repayables/receivables will be settled in cash.

~SMDIOA N,
gJ\/. — "”'i‘h AN
o\

-

(This space has been intentionally kft blank)




Medanta Holdings Private Limited

Notes ‘o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

@

(ii)

@

@

(i)

(iii)

Note - 36
Capital management

‘Ihe Company’s objectives when managing capital are:

- To ensure Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, and

- 'T'o maintain optimum capital structure and to reduce cost of capital.

Management assesses the capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. The Company has
complied with debt covenants as per the tesms of the borrowing facility arrangements. ‘The Company manages its capital requirements by overseeing the debt-equity ratio:

(X in millions)

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Total borrowings (excluding interest accrued) 3,740.67 4,345.78
‘Total equity 5,341.98 4,058.54
Debt to equity ratio 0.70 1.07

Note - 37A
Commitments and contingencies
Capital commitment

( in millions)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Property, plant and cquipment and capital work-in-progress (net of advances)

193.94

179.47

Intangible assets under development (net of advances)

6.17

Other commitment

(® in millions)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Bank guarantee*

52.54

52.68

*This Fnclude hank grarantee for the purpose of export promotion capilal goods registration.

Note - 37B

The Company is contesting various medical related legal cases in various forums. Based on the legal view from external consultant and internal analysis, the management believes that these

cases will not adversely impact its financial statements and likelihood of any outflow of resources is remote.

Note - 38
Employee benefits obligations
Defined contribution plan

(@ in millions)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Employer’s contribution to provident fund charged to statement of profit and loss* 42.82 36.38
Contribution to Employee state insurance scheme charged to statement of profit and loss 5.42 5.66
Total 48.24 42.04

*Contributions are made to recognised provident fund administered by the Government of India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The obligation of the

Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no fusther contractual or constructive obligation.

Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for
gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/separation is the employces last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number

of years of service.

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

® in millions)

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Present value of the obligation 29.89 20.42
Unfunded liability/provision in balance sheet (29.89) (20.42)
Bifurcation of present value of obligation at the end of the year - current and non-current ( in millions)
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Current liability 1.62 0.08
Non-current liability 28.27 20.34
Total 29.89 20.42
Expenses recognized in other comprehensive income (% in millions)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial (gains)
-Changes in demographic assumptions 0.02 -
-Changes in financial assumptions 1.02 (0.35)
-Changes in experience adjustment (2.24) (1.73)
Gain recognized in other comprehensive income (1.20), (2.08
Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss ® in millions)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Current service cost 9.17 1.51
Interest cost 1.51 1.02

10.68 8.53

Expensc recognized during the year
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(iv)

™

(vi)

(vii)

Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet is as undcr: (% in millions)
Pariculars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Present value of defined benefit obEgation at the beginning of the year 2042 13.99
Current serviee ost 9.17 151
Interest cost 1.51 1.0z
Actuarial pain (1.20) 2.0,8)
Benchits paid - (0.01) (0.02)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 29.89 2042

For determination of the liability of the Company the following actuaaal assumptions wese used:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Retirement age (years)
Average past service
Average age
Average remaining working life
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 years

I'rom 31 to 44 years

Above 44 years

7.13%)
5.00%

60 years
2.38 yeass
30.05 years
29.95 years
13.74 years|

12.70%)
5.80%)
0.20%)

7.39%
5.00%

60 years
1.87 years
29.57 years
30.43 years
19.26 years|

4.00%)
3.00%
2.00%

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of TALM (2012 — 14)

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted)

® in millions)

Year As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
0to 1 year 1.62 0.08
1to 2 year 3.08 1.99
2103 year 247 113
3 to 4 year 1.56 1.54
4i0 5 year 1.51 0.72
5 to 6 year 1.44 0.83
G year onwards 34.86 31.25
Gross total 46.54 37.54
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity R in millions)
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 29.89 20.42
Impact due to increase of .50 % (1.63) (1.36)|
Tmpact due to decrease of .50 %% 1.81 1.52
b) Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 29.89 2042
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 1.84 1.55
Impact due to decrease of 1.50 Ya (1.67) (1.40)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material. Hence, impact of change is not calculated above.
Sensitivities as to ratc of inflation and life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

The above sensitivity analysis ace based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in sum of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of defined benefit
obligations calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting year) has been applicd as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised 1n the balance sheet.

Risk

Sulary increases et
: liability.

Actual salary increases will increase the plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the

Investment risk < e
date can impact the liability.

If plan is funded then assets-liabilities mismatch and actual investment return on asscts lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation

Discount rate

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Mortality and disability

Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

Withdrawals plan’s liability.

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subscquent valuations can impact the

Note - 39

The chief operating decision maker (CODM) i.e. Board of Directors, examines the Company's performance from a service perspective and has identified the "Healthcare services' as a single
business segment, The Company is operating in India which constitutes a single geographical segment. The CODM reviews internal management reports to assess the performance of the

segment "Healthcare seevices'. There are no transactions with a single external customer which would amount to ten percent or more of the Company's revenues.
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Note - 40
Lease refated disclosures as lessee

The Company has leases for building and other plant and cquipiacats. With the exception of short-term feascs and leases of low-valuc underlying assets, cach lease is reflected on the
balance sheet as a right-of-use asset and a lease Lability. Variable lease payments whih do not depend on an iades or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease
liability and nght of use assets. The Company <lassifies its right-of-usc assets in a consistent manaer to its property, plant and equipment.

Farh lease generally imposcs a restriction that, unless therc is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the asset w another party, the right-of-use asset can only be used by
the Company. Some leases contain an option to extend the lease for a further teem. ‘The Company is ‘prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as security. For
leases over buildings and cquipment, the Company must keep those properties in . good state of repair and return in their original condition at the end of the lease. Further, the

Company is reguired to pay maintenance fees i accordance with the lease contracts.

A Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability

The expense relating to payments not included in the measurement of the lease liability is as follows:

(X in millions

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Short-term leases

73.06

82.42

B As ar 31 March 2024, the Company was committed to short-term leases and the total commitment as at that date was Z0.98 millions (31 March 2023: ¥ 1.24 millions).

C Total cach outflow &r leases (excluding short-term leases) for the year ended 31 March 2024 was 3 7.23 millions (31 March 2023:  7.09 millions).

D Total expense recognised during the vear

( in millions)

[Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
i 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest on lease labilities 2.74 3.16
4.76 4.74

Depreciation on right of use asset

E Maturity of lease liabilities

The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future min‘mum lease payments are as foliows:

® in millions)

31 Ma:ch 2024 Mirimum lease payments due
Within 1 year| 1-2 years 2-3 years 34 years 4-5 years More than 5 years Total
lease payments* 6.94 7.37 7.54 7.54 0.92 - 30.31
Interest expense 0.36 1.06 1.69 225 0.43 - 5.79
Net present values 6.58 6.31 5.85 5.2% 0.49 - 24.52
( in millions)
31 March 2023 Minimum lease payments due
Within 1 year| 1-2 years 2-3 years 34 years 4-5 years More than 5 years Total
Iease payments* 713 6.97 7.29 7.54 7.54 1.89 38.36
Interest expense 0.06 0.95 1.58 2.16 3.87 (.73 9.35
Net present values 7.07 6.02 5.71 5.38 3.67 1.16 29.01
* exelding faxes
F Bifurcation of leasc liabilities in current and non-current (% in millions)
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
a) Current liability (amount due within one year) 6.58 7.06
b) Non-current liability (amount due over one year) 17.94 21.95
Total lease liabilities at the end of the year 24.52 29.01
G Information about extension and termination options
As at 31 March 2024
Right of use assets Number of leases Range of Average Number of leases with Number of leases with
remaining remaining extension option termination option
term (in  [lease term (in
years) years)
Building 1 4.17 4.17 1 1
Plant and machinery 1 0.63 0.63 1 1
As at 31 March 2023
Right of use assets Number of leases Range of Average Number of leases with Number of leases with
remaining remaining extension option termination option
term (in  |lease term (in
years) years)
Building 1 517 5.17 1 1
Plant and machinery 1 1.63 1.63 1 1
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A

Note - 41

Disclosures as per the requirements of Division 11 of Schedule III to the Act

Ageing schedule of capital work-in-progress (% in millions)
As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 86.80 123.68 141.41 630.46 982.35

( in millions)
As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 year J-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 328.25 177.36 86.73 995.42 1,587.76
Ageing schedule of intangible assets under development ® in millions)
As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress 3.30 - - - 3.30

(® in millions)
As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress

Ageing schedule of trade receivables ® in millions)
As at 31 March 2024 Outstanding from the due date of invoice Total
Less than 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 years More than 3 years
months
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 132.65 47.54 35.01 10.41 - 225.61
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired 2.68 0.77 2.64 7.77 1.05 14.91
‘Total trade receivables 135.33 45.31 37.65 18.18 1.05 240.52
® in millions)
As at 31 March 2023 Outstanding from the due date of invoice Total
Less than 6 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
months
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 119.32 35.46 19.06 - - 173.84
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - - - 0.86 0.19 1.05
Total trade receivables 119.32 35.46 19.06 0.86 0.19 174.89

Notes:

) There are no debts due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them cither severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms

respectively in which any director or a director or a member

b) There arc no disputed trade receivables, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing of the schedule.

or private companies

Ageing schedule of trade payables” (% in millions)
As at 31 March 2024 Outstanding from the due date of invoice . Total
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 79.28 2.75 - - 0,05 82.08
Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 156.46 5.39 0.28 0.06 0.01 162.20
(¥ in millions)
As at 31 March 2023 OQutstanding from the due date of invoice Total
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 124.51 5.14 0.04 0.09 - 129.78
Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 175.92 11.36 - 3.99 0.25 191,52

~ There are no disputed trade payables, hewce the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedue.

Details related to borrowings secured against current assets
"I'he Company has given current assets as sccurity for its borrowings, however, as per the credit facilities sanction letter, the Company is not required to submit any return/statement with the

banks and hence, this disclosure is not applicable.

Details of promoter sharcholding in equity shares

Name of promoter

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Number of shares| % of total shares | % change during [ Number of shares| % of total shares | % change during
the year the year
(;101:!21] Health Limited (Holding Company) (including 74,215,270 100.00% 0.00% 71,736,341 100.00%, 0.00%
nominee sharcholders)
Details of promoter shareholding in compulsorily convertible preference shares
Name of promoter 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Number of shares

% of total shares

% change during
the year

Number of shares

% of total shares

% change during
the year

Global Health Limited (Holding Company)

(100.00)%)

2,478,929/

100.00%

0.00%

Notes:

a) The above information is furnished as per shareholder register of the Company as at the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

b) The change in promoter's shareholdings during the current year is on account of conversion of compulsorily convertible preference shares into equity shares.

urposc of this disclosure means promoters as defined under Section 2(69) of the Act, 2013.

©) 'Promoters’ for th‘

WA o~
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Note - 42

Disclosures as per the requirements of Division II of Schedule IIT to the Act - financial ratios

Ratio Measurement Numerator Denominator As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023| Change | Remarks
unit
i Ratio Ratio
Current ratio In times Current assets Current liabilities 1.52 109 | 39.06%|Note B below
Debt-equity ratio In times Total debt Total cquity 0.70 1.07 | (34.60)%|Note C below
[Non-current borrowings + Current
borrowings)
Ratio Measurement Numerator Denominator For the year ended | For the year ended | Change | Remarks
unit 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Ratio Ratio
Debt service coverage ratio  |In times Eamnings  before  depreciation  and|Interest expense 0.60 2.56 | (76.62)"|Note D below
amortisation and interest (including capitalised) +
[Eamings = Profit after tax +[Principal repayment
Depreciation and amortisation expense|(including prepayments)
+ Finance costs (excluding intetest on
lease liabilities)]
Return on equity ratio Percentage Profit after tax Average of total equity 27.29% 26.38%]|  3.44%|Note A below
Inventory turnover ratio In times Costs  of materials  consumed  +|Average inventories 12.97 1145 | 13.23%|Note A below
Purchases of stock-in-trade + Changes
in inventories of stock-in-trade
Trade receivables turnover|In times Revenue from opérations Average trade receivables 35.36 46.99 | (24.75)%s|Note A below
ratio
‘I'tade payables turnover ratio |In times Purchases + Retainers and consultants| Average trade payables 12.72 11.06 | 15.04"|Note A below
fee + other expenses
[Purchases = Pharmacy, medical and
laboratory consumables related to in-
patient services + Pharmacy and medical
consumables related to sale of pharmacy
products to out-patients]
Net capital turnover ratio In times Revenue from operations Working capital 9.37 53.28 | (82.42)%|Note E below
[Current assets - Current
liabilities]
Net profit ratio Percentage Profit after tax Revenue from operations 18.40% 16.60%]| 10.80%|Note A below
Return on capital employed  |Percentage Earnings before interest and tax Capital employed 21.24% 17.72%|  19.86%|Note A below
|Earnings = Profit before tax + Finance|[Total assets - Current]
costs] labilittes  +  Current
borrowings]
Return on investment Percentage Interest income on bank deposits Current and non-current 5.76% 5.41%]  6.43%|Note A below
bank deposits (average off
monthly closing balance)

Note:
A 'The change in ratio is less than 25% as compared to previous year and hence, no explanation is required to be furnished.
B The increase in ratio is primasily attributable to the increase in current assets (receivables and bank balances) due to the increase in operations during the current year.
C The decrease in ratio is primarily attributable to the repayments of borrowings.
D The decrease in ratio is primarily attributable to the prepayment of certain borrowings.
E The decrease in ratio is primarily attributable to the increase in current assets (geceivables and bank balances) due to the increase in operations during the current year.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Note - 43
Revenue related disclosures
I Disaggregation of revenue

The Compaay largely derives its revenue from non-government customers, Tabulated below s the disaggregation of the revenue:

R in millions)

Particuiars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

(A) Operating revenuc
Income from Lealthcarc s2vices

In patient 5,615.88 4,688.44
Out patient 987.75 748.11
Income from sale of pharmacy products to out-patients

Sale of pharmacy products 343.56 240.80
(B) Other operating income

Grant income (on account of government grants) 1.73 219

Clinical research income 2.39 3.06

Income from sponsorship and training 1.48 1.71

Revenue share from food court and pharmacy 14.67 7.96

Other operating revenue 417 3.27
Total revenue 6,971.63 5,695.54

(X in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income from healthcare services
Government 145.78 104,73
Non-government 6,457.85 5,331.82
Total income from healthcare services 6,603.63 5,435.55
II Contract balances
The follorving table provides information about receivables and contract liabilities from contract with customers:
( in millicns
Particulars As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 213.51 123.54
Total contract liabilities 213.51 123.54
Contract assets
Unbilled revenue 26.64 30.20
‘Total contract assets 26.64 30.20

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity's obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Contract asscts (unbilled receivables) are transferred to receivables when the rights

become unconditional and contract liabilities are recognised as and when the performance obligation is satisficd.

III Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:

(X in millions

Closing balance as at 31 March 2024

Contract liabilities - Advance from customers Amount
Opening balance as at 01 April 2022 90.27
Add: Addition during the year 5,469.82
Less: Amount of revenue recognised during the year (5,436.55)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 123.54
Add: Addition during the year 6,693.60
Less: Amount of revenue recognised during the year (6,603.63)
213.51

The aggregate amount of transaction price allocated to the performance obligations (yet to complete) as at 31 March 2024 is ¥ 213.51 millions (31 March 2023: ¥ 123.54 millions).
This balance represents the advance reccived from customers (gross) against healthcare services. The management expects to further bill and collect the remaining balance of total

consideration in the coming years. These balances will be recognised as revenue in future years as per the policy of the Company.

IV Reconciliation of operating revenue recognised with contract revenue:

( in millions)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contract revenue 7,021.50 5,722.74
Less: Adjustments for discount (74.31) (45.39)
Income from healthcare services and sale of pharmacy products to out-patients 6,947.19 5,677.35
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Medanta H()ldings Privare Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Note - 44

Other statutory information:

A. The Company has not advanced or loaned ot invested funds to any person(s) or any entity(es), inciuding foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding that the
intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons er entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries)

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

B. The Company has uot received any fund from any person(s) or any entity (ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiarics)

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

C. The Company does not have any transactions during the the current as well previous year including outstanding balances with Companies struck off under section 248 of the
Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

D. The Company has no such transacuon which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

E. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the year.
F. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory year.

G. The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

Note-45

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Las prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, inserted by
the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall only use such accounting
software which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such
change were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The new requirement is applicable with effect from the financial year beginning on 01 April 2023. During
the current year, the audit trail (edit logs) feature for any direct changes made at the database level was not enabled for the accounting software used for maintenance of books of
account. However, the audit trail (cdit log) at the application level for the accounting software was operating for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Note - 46
Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever considered necessary. The details are as follows:
Particulars For the year ended Adjustments For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2023
(Reported) (Reclassificd)
Statement of profit and loss
Revenue from operations 5,682.60 12.94 5,695.54
Other income 36.70 (12.94) 23.76
LEmployee benefits expense 709.90 0.42 710.32
Other expenses 735.00 (0.42) 734.58
Balance sheet
Other financial liabilities - non-current 129.23 230.51 359.74
Other non-current liabilities 236.01 (230.51) 5.50

The impact of such reclassifications/regrouping is not material to the overall financial statements.

The notes to the financial statement including material accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of the financial statements.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
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